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BEFORE THE
| LLI NO S COMVERCE COWM SSI ON
PUBLI C UTI LI TI ES REGULAR OPEN MEETI NG
Wednesday, October 28th, 2020

Chi cago, Illinois

Met pursuant to notice via videoconference
at 10:30 a.m at 160 North LaSalle Street, Chicago,

[11inois.

PRESENT:
CARRI E ZALEWSKI , Chai r wonman
D. ETHAN KI MBREL, Comm ssi oner
SADZI M QLI VA, Conm ssioner (via videoconference)

MARI A S. BOCANEGRA, Conmi ssioner (via videoconference)

M CHAEL T. CARRI GAN, Commi ssioner (via Springfield Ofice)

BRI DGES COURT REPORTI NG
BY: Stephen Mortensen,
Not ary Public
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CHAl RWOVAN ZALEWSKI @ Under the Open Meetings

Act and in accordance with the Governor's executive

orders, | call the Cctober 28, 2020, Regul ar Open
Meeting to order.

Bef ore we proceed, for the clarity
of the record, | would ask everyone to state their
name before speaking and to speak slowy and
clearly so that the court reporter can capture
everything that is said.

| al ready checked that al
Comm ssioners are with us and we have a quorum

We have no request to speak and we
are noving on to our agenda.

CHAI RWOVAN ZALEWSKI :  We're noving on to our
Public Utilities Agenda.

There are edits to the October 1st,
2020, Special Open Meeting m nutes.

Are there any objections to
approving the mnutes as edited?

(No verbal response.)

CHAl RA\OVAN ZALEWSKI :  Hearing none, the

Bridges Court Reporting
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1 m nutes are approved.

2 Under our Electric Itens: ItemE-1

3 | concerns MdAnmerican's filing to nodify its refund

4 process for billing adjustnments. The filing nakes

5 refunds due to inaccurate nmeters ineligible for

6 billing adjustnments for tinme periods nore than two

7 years. The Conmm ssion staff recomrends not

8 | suspending the filing.

9 Are there any objections to not

10 suspendi ng the filing?

11 (No verbal response.)

12 CHAI RMOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Heari ng none, the

13 filing is not suspended.

14 Item E-2 concerns ConkEd's filing to
15 | revise R der Residential Ar Conditioner Load

16 Cycling Program or Rider AC. The revisions:

17 First, termnate the thernostat control option of
18 the programcurrently offered to participants

19 electing to utilize a smart thernostat to

20 participate in the program Second, it allows for
21 conpliance with nodifications to the PIJM Base

22 Capacity Demand Response Program ConEd believes
Bridges Court Reporting Page: 5
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1 termnation of the thernostat control option is

2 necessary because of the |ack of appropriate

3 | vendor. The Comm ssion staff recommends not

4 suspendi ng the filing.

5 Are there any objections to not

6 suspendi ng the filing?

7 (No verbal response.)

8 CHAI RMOVAN ZALEWSKI : Heari ng none, the

9| filing is not suspended.

10 Item E-3 concerns M. Carnel's

11 request for reconciliation of revenues under its

12 fuel adjustnment charges for the cal endar year of

13 2019. The order approves the reconciliation, as

14 | set in the appendix to the order, finding that the
15 | costs were prudently incurred.

16 Are there any objections to

17 approving the order?

18 (No verbal response.)

19 CHAl RWOVAN ZALEWSKI @ Hearing none, the order
20 i s approved.

21 Item E-4 concerns a citation for

22 | failure to conply with Part 454 of the Conm ssion's
Bridges Court Reporting Page: 6
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1 rules. The parties have a stipulation and joint

2 notion to dismss, stipulating that the issues

3 rai sed by the Conm ssion have been resol ved and

4 requesting that the Conm ssion dismss the

5 citations with prejudice.

6 Are there objections to granting

7| the notion to dismss?

8 (No verbal response.)

9 CHAI RWOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Heari ng none, the

10 notion is granted.

11 Item E-5 concerns a request for

12 confidential treatnment of petitioner's report. The
13 order grants the protection, finding that the

14 information is highly proprietary and confidential.
15 Are there any objections to

16 approving the order?

17 (No verbal response.)

18 CHAI RMOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Heari ng none, the order
19 IS approved.

20 Item E-6 concerns a request for

21 confidential treatnment of petitioner's report. The
22 petitioner has determined that this filing is
Bridges Court Reporting Page: 7
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duplicative and unnecessary and has notioned to
withdraw its filing.

Are there objections to granting
the notion to w thdraw?

(No verbal response.)

CHAl RWOVAN ZALEWSKI @ Hearing none, the

nmotion is granted.

Item E-7 concerns a petition by the
II'linois Departnment of Transportation, or |DOI, for
approval of em nent domain to acquire certain
properties owned by ConEd in Lee County, Illinois.
| DOT requires the property to conplete roadwork and
help facilitate vehicular traffic on U S. Route 41.
The order approves IDOI"s request and grants
an approval to acquire a tenporary easenent for
construction purposes for a period of five years,
or until conpletion of construction, whichever
occurs first.

Are there any objections to
approving the order?

(No verbal response.)

CHAl RAOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Hearing none, the order

Bridges Court Reporting Page: 8
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IS approved.

Item E-8 concerns a petition to
cancel a certificate to operate as a retai
el ectric agent, broker and consultant in Illinois.
The petitioner states that it has ceased operations
inlllinois and no | onger has any custoners in
Il'linois. The order cancels the certificate and
directs the petitioner to file any outstandi ng
annual reports with the Comm ssion within 60 days
of the date of the order.

Are there any objections to
approving the order?

(No verbal response.)

CHAl RWOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Hearing none, the order

i s approved.

Itens E-9 and E-10 concern
petitions for certificates to install energy
ef ficiency nmeasures in Illinois. The orders grant
the certificates, finding that the applicants neet
t he requirenents.

Are there any objections to

considering these itens together and approving the

Bridges Court Reporting
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1 orders?

2 (No verbal response.)

3 CHAI RWOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Hearing none, the

4 orders are approved.

5 Under our Gas Itenms: Itenms G 1 and

6 G 2 concern Illinois Gas Conpany's and

7 M. Carnel's request to reconcile revenues

8 col |l ected under their gas adjustnent charges, or

9 Ri der PGA. The orders approve the reconciliations
10 as set in the appendices to the orders, finding

11 that the costs during the reconciliation period

12 were prudently incurred.

13 Are there any objections to

14 considering these itens together and approving the
15 | orders?

16 (No verbal response.)

17 CHAI RMOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Heari ng none, the

18 orders are approved.

19 Under our Tel ecommuni cations |tens:
20 Item T-1 concerns Docket 20-0215, which is a

21 conpl ai nt against Frontier North regarding a

22 billing issue. The conplainant notioned to
Bridges Court Reporting Page: 10
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voluntarily dism ss the conpl aint.

Are there any objections to
granting the notion to dism ss?

(No verbal response.)

CHAI RMOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Heari ng none, the

nmotion to dism ss is granted.

Item T-2 concerns Mastec Network
Solutions' application for a certificate of |ocal
exchange and access authority to operate as a
facilities-based carrier of tel econmunications
services in Illinois. The order grants a
certificate, finding that the applicant neets the
requi renents

Are there any objections to
approving the order?

(No verbal response.)

CHAI RMOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Heari ng none, the order

i s approved.

There are no Water and Sewer |tens,
no M scel |l aneous Itens, no Petitions for Rehearing.

Under Other Business Itenms: Item

O 1 concerns approval of batches, contracts, and

Bridges Court Reporting
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confirmati ons under the Illinois Adjustable Bl ock
Program
Are there any objections to
approving the program adm nistrator's subm ssi ons?
(No verbal response.)
CHAl RWOVAN ZALEWSKI @ Hearing none, the
subm ssi ons are approved.
Thi s concludes our Public Utilities
Agendas.
Judge Teague-Ki ngsl ey, do we have
any matters to conme before the Conmm ssion today?
THE COURT: No, mm'am
CHAl RWOVAN ZALEWSKI @ Do any of the
Conmmi ssi oners have any ot her business to discuss?
(No verbal response.)
CHAI RWOVAN ZALEWSKI :  Heari ng none, and
wi t hout objection, the neeting is adjourned.
Thank you.
(WHEREUPON, the above-entitled

matter was adj ourned.)

Bridges Court Reporting Page: 12
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 01                    BEFORE THE

 02           ILLINOIS COMMERCE COMMISSION

 03       PUBLIC UTILITIES REGULAR OPEN MEETING

 04           Wednesday, October 28th, 2020

 05                Chicago, Illinois

 06  

 07        Met pursuant to notice via videoconference

 08  at 10:30 a.m. at 160 North LaSalle Street, Chicago,

 09  Illinois.

 10  

 11  PRESENT:

 12        CARRIE ZALEWSKI, Chairwoman

 13        D. ETHAN KIMBREL, Commissioner

 14        SADZI M. OLIVA, Commissioner (via videoconference)

 15        MARIA S. BOCANEGRA, Commissioner (via videoconference)

 16        MICHAEL T. CARRIGAN, Commissioner  (via Springfield Office)

 17  

 18  

 19  

 20  

 21  BRIDGES COURT REPORTING

     BY: Stephen Mortensen,

 22  Notary Public
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 01        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Under the Open Meetings

 02  Act and in accordance with the Governor's executive

 03  orders, I call the October 28, 2020, Regular Open

 04  Meeting to order.

 05                  Before we proceed, for the clarity

 06  of the record, I would ask everyone to state their

 07  name before speaking and to speak slowly and

 08  clearly so that the court reporter can capture

 09  everything that is said.

 10                  I already checked that all

 11  Commissioners are with us and we have a quorum.

 12                  We have no request to speak and we

 13  are moving on to our agenda.

 15        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  We're moving on to our

 16  Public Utilities Agenda.

 17                  There are edits to the October 1st,

 18  2020, Special Open Meeting minutes.

 19                  Are there any objections to

 20  approving the minutes as edited?

 21                  (No verbal response.)

 22        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the

�0005

 01  minutes are approved.

 02                  Under our Electric Items: Item E-1

 03  concerns MidAmerican's filing to modify its refund

 04  process for billing adjustments.  The filing makes

 05  refunds due to inaccurate meters ineligible for

 06  billing adjustments for time periods more than two

 07  years.  The Commission staff recommends not

 08  suspending the filing.

 09                  Are there any objections to not

 10  suspending the filing?

 11                  (No verbal response.)

 12        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the

 13  filing is not suspended.

 14                  Item E-2 concerns ComEd's filing to

 15  revise Rider Residential Air Conditioner Load

 16  Cycling Program, or Rider AC.  The revisions:

 17  First, terminate the thermostat control option of

 18  the program currently offered to participants

 19  electing to utilize a smart thermostat to

 20  participate in the program.  Second, it allows for

 21  compliance with modifications to the PJM Base

 22  Capacity Demand Response Program.  ComEd believes

�0006

 01  termination of the thermostat control option is

 02  necessary because of the lack of appropriate

 03  vendor.  The Commission staff recommends not

 04  suspending the filing.

 05                  Are there any objections to not

 06  suspending the filing?

 07                  (No verbal response.)

 08        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the

 09  filing is not suspended.

 10                  Item E-3 concerns Mt. Carmel's

 11  request for reconciliation of revenues under its

 12  fuel adjustment charges for the calendar year of

 13  2019.  The order approves the reconciliation, as

 14  set in the appendix to the order, finding that the

 15  costs were prudently incurred.

 16                  Are there any objections to

 17  approving the order?

 18                  (No verbal response.)

 19        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the order

 20  is approved.

 21                  Item E-4 concerns a citation for

 22  failure to comply with Part 454 of the Commission's

�0007

 01  rules.  The parties have a stipulation and joint

 02  motion to dismiss, stipulating that the issues

 03  raised by the Commission have been resolved and

 04  requesting that the Commission dismiss the

 05  citations with prejudice.

 06                  Are there objections to granting

 07  the motion to dismiss?

 08                  (No verbal response.)

 09        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the

 10  motion is granted.

 11                  Item E-5 concerns a request for

 12  confidential treatment of petitioner's report.  The

 13  order grants the protection, finding that the

 14  information is highly proprietary and confidential.

 15                  Are there any objections to

 16  approving the order?

 17                  (No verbal response.)

 18        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the order

 19  is approved.

 20                  Item E-6 concerns a request for

 21  confidential treatment of petitioner's report.  The

 22  petitioner has determined that this filing is

�0008

 01  duplicative and unnecessary and has motioned to

 02  withdraw its filing.

 03                  Are there objections to granting

 04  the motion to withdraw?

 05                  (No verbal response.)

 06        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the

 07  motion is granted.

 08                  Item E-7 concerns a petition by the

 09  Illinois Department of Transportation, or IDOT, for

 10  approval of eminent domain to acquire certain

 11  properties owned by ComEd in Lee County, Illinois.

 12  IDOT requires the property to complete roadwork and

 13  help facilitate vehicular traffic on U.S. Route 41.

 14  The order approves IDOT's request and grants

 15  an approval to acquire a temporary easement for

 16  construction purposes for a period of five years,

 17  or until completion of construction, whichever

 18  occurs first.

 19                  Are there any objections to

 20  approving the order?

 21                  (No verbal response.)

 22        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the order

�0009

 01  is approved.

 02                  Item E-8 concerns a petition to

 03  cancel a certificate to operate as a retail

 04  electric agent, broker and consultant in Illinois.

 05  The petitioner states that it has ceased operations

 06  in Illinois and no longer has any customers in

 07  Illinois.  The order cancels the certificate and

 08  directs the petitioner to file any outstanding

 09  annual reports with the Commission within 60 days

 10  of the date of the order.

 11                  Are there any objections to

 12  approving the order?

 13                  (No verbal response.)

 14        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the order

 15  is approved.

 16                  Items E-9 and E-10 concern

 17  petitions for certificates to install energy

 18  efficiency measures in Illinois.  The orders grant

 19  the certificates, finding that the applicants meet

 20  the requirements.

 21                  Are there any objections to

 22  considering these items together and approving the

�0010

 01  orders?

 02                  (No verbal response.)

 03        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the

 04  orders are approved.

 05                  Under our Gas Items: Items G-1 and

 06  G-2 concern Illinois Gas Company's and

 07  Mt. Carmel's request to reconcile revenues

 08  collected under their gas adjustment charges, or

 09  Rider PGA. The orders approve the reconciliations

 10  as set in the appendices to the orders, finding

 11  that the costs during the reconciliation period

 12  were prudently incurred.

 13                  Are there any objections to

 14  considering these items together and approving the

 15  orders?

 16                  (No verbal response.)

 17        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the

 18  orders are approved.

 19                  Under our Telecommunications Items:

 20  Item T-1 concerns Docket 20-0215, which is a

 21  complaint against Frontier North regarding a

 22  billing issue.  The complainant motioned to

�0011

 01  voluntarily dismiss the complaint.

 02                  Are there any objections to

 03  granting the motion to dismiss?

 04                  (No verbal response.)

 05        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the

 06  motion to dismiss is granted.

 07                  Item T-2 concerns Mastec Network

 08  Solutions' application for a certificate of local

 09  exchange and access authority to operate as a

 10  facilities-based carrier of telecommunications

 11  services in Illinois.  The order grants a

 12  certificate, finding that the applicant meets the

 13  requirements.

 14                  Are there any objections to

 15  approving the order?

 16                  (No verbal response.)

 17        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the order

 18  is approved.

 19                  There are no Water and Sewer Items,

 20  no Miscellaneous Items, no Petitions for Rehearing.

 21                  Under Other Business Items: Item

 22  O-1 concerns approval of batches, contracts, and

�0012

 01  confirmations under the Illinois Adjustable Block

 02  Program.

 03                  Are there any objections to

 04  approving the program administrator's submissions?

 05                  (No verbal response.)

 06        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, the

 07  submissions are approved.

 08                  This concludes our Public Utilities

 09  Agendas.

 10                  Judge Teague-Kingsley, do we have

 11  any matters to come before the Commission today?

 12        THE COURT:  No, ma'am.

 13        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Do any of the

 14  Commissioners have any other business to discuss?

 15                  (No verbal response.)

 16        CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI:  Hearing none, and

 17  without objection, the meeting is adjourned.

 18                  Thank you.

 19                  (WHEREUPON, the above-entitled

 20                   matter was adjourned.)

 21  

 22  
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Page 1
BEFORE THE

ILLINOIS COMMERCE COMMISSION
PUBLIC UTILITIESREGULAR OPEN MEETING
Wednesday, October 28th, 2020
Chicago, Illinois

Met pursuant to notice via videoconference
at 10:30 am. at 160 North LaSalle Street, Chicago,

Illinois.

PRESENT:
CARRIE ZALEWSKI, Chairwoman
D. ETHAN KIMBREL, Commissioner
SADZI M. OLIVA, Commissioner (via videoconference)
MARIA S. BOCANEGRA, Commissioner (viavideoconference)
MICHAEL T. CARRIGAN, Commissioner (via Springfield Office)

BRIDGES COURT REPORTING
BY': Stephen Mortensen,
Notary Public

] Page 5
minutes are approved.

Under our Electric Items: Item E-1
concerns MidAmerican's filing to modify its refund
process for billing adjustments. The filing makes
refunds due to inaccurate metersineligible for
billing adjustments for time periods more than two
years. The Commission staff recommends not
suspending the filing.

Are there any objectionsto not
suspending the filing?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the
filing is not suspended.

Item E-2 concerns ComEd's filing to
revise Rider Residential Air Conditioner Load
Cycling Program, or Rider AC. Therevisions:
First, terminate the thermostat control option of
the program currently offered to participants
electing to utilize a smart thermostat to
participate in the program. Second, it allows for
compliance with modifications to the PIM Base
Capacity Demand Response Program. ComEd believes
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Page 4
CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Under the Open Meetings

Act and in accordance with the Governor's executive
orders, | call the October 28, 2020, Regular Open
Meeting to order.
Before we proceed, for the clarity
of the record, | would ask everyone to state their
name before speaking and to speak slowly and
clearly so that the court reporter can capture
everything that is said.
| already checked that all
Commissioners are with us and we have a quorum.
We have no request to speak and we
are moving on to our agenda.
CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Were moving on to our
Public Utilities Agenda.
There are edits to the October 1st,
2020, Special Open Meeting minutes.
Are there any objections to
approving the minutes as edited?
(No verbal response.)
CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the
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Page 6
termination of the thermostat control optionis

necessary because of the lack of appropriate
vendor. The Commission staff recommends not
suspending the filing.

Are there any objections to not
suspending the filing?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the

filing is not suspended.

Item E-3 concerns Mt. Carmel's
reguest for reconciliation of revenues under its
fuel adjustment charges for the calendar year of
2019. The order approves the reconciliation, as
set in the appendix to the order, finding that the
costs were prudently incurred.

Are there any objections to
approving the order?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the order

is approved.

Item E-4 concerns a citation for
failure to comply with Part 454 of the Commission's

Bridges Court Reporting
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Page 7
rules. The parties have a stipulation and joint

motion to dismiss, stipulating that the issues
raised by the Commission have been resolved and
requesting that the Commission dismissthe
citations with prejudice.

Are there objections to granting
the motion to dismiss?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the
motion is granted.

Item E-5 concerns arequest for
confidential treatment of petitioner's report. The
order grants the protection, finding that the
information is highly proprietary and confidential.

Are there any objectionsto
approving the order?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the order
is approved.

Item E-6 concerns a request for
confidential treatment of petitioner's report. The
petitioner has determined that thisfiling is
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is approved.

Item E-8 concerns a petition to
cancel acertificate to operate as aretail
electric agent, broker and consultant in Illinois.
The petitioner states that it has ceased operations
in Illinois and no longer has any customersin
Illinois. The order cancels the certificate and
directs the petitioner to file any outstanding
annual reports with the Commission within 60 days
of the date of the order.

Are there any objectionsto
approving the order?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the order

is approved.

Items E-9 and E-10 concern
petitions for certificatesto install energy
efficiency measuresin Illinois. The orders grant
the certificates, finding that the applicants meet
the requirements.

Are there any objections to
considering these items together and approving the
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Page 8
duplicative and unnecessary and has motioned to

withdraw itsfiling.

Are there objections to granting
the motion to withdraw?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the

motion is granted.

Item E-7 concerns a petition by the
Illinois Department of Transportation, or IDOT, for
approval of eminent domain to acquire certain
properties owned by ComEd in Lee County, Illinais.
IDOT requires the property to complete roadwork and
help facilitate vehicular traffic on U.S. Route 41.
The order approves IDOT's request and grants
an approval to acquire atemporary easement for
construction purposes for a period of five years,
or until completion of construction, whichever
occursfirst.

Are there any objections to
approving the order?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the order
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orders?

(No verbal response.)
CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the

orders are approved.

Under our Gas Items: Items G-1 and
G-2 concern Illinois Gas Company's and
Mt. Carmel's request to reconcile revenues
collected under their gas adjustment charges, or
Rider PGA. The orders approve the reconciliations
as set in the appendices to the orders, finding
that the costs during the reconciliation period
were prudently incurred.

Are there any objections to
considering these items together and approving the
orders?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the

orders are approved.

Under our Telecommunications Items:
Item T-1 concerns Docket 20-0215, whichisa
complaint against Frontier North regarding a
billing issue. The complainant motioned to

Bridges Court Reporting
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voluntarily dismiss the complaint.

Are there any objectionsto
granting the motion to dismiss?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the
motion to dismissis granted.

Item T-2 concerns Mastec Network
Solutions application for a certificate of local
exchange and access authority to operate as a
facilities-based carrier of telecommunications
servicesin lllinois. The order grantsa
certificate, finding that the applicant meets the
requirements.

Are there any objections to
approving the order?

(No verbal response.)

CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the order
is approved.

There are no Water and Sewer ltems,
no Miscellaneous Items, no Petitions for Rehearing.

Under Other Business Items: Item
O-1 concerns approval of batches, contracts, and
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confirmations under the Illinois Adjustable Block

Program.
Are there any abjectionsto
approving the program administrator's submissions?
(No verbal response.)
CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the
submissions are approved.
This concludes our Public Utilities
Agendas.
Judge Teague-Kingsley, do we have
any matters to come before the Commission today?
THE COURT: No, maam.
CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Do any of the
Commissioners have any other business to discuss?
(No verbal response.)
CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, and
without objection, the meeting is adjourned.
Thank you.
(WHEREUPON, the above-entitled
matter was adjourned.)

Bridges Court Reporting
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